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BOARDS’ REPORT
To,
The Members

Chembond Water Technologies Limited

The Directors of the Company present the 35™ Annual Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended 315 March 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The financial performance of your Company for the year 2019-20 and 2018-19 is summarized below:

Parti Amount (% in lakhs)
articulars

2019-20 2018-19
Total Revenue 12589.81 13247.99
Profit for the year 777.18 © 855.90
Add: Balance as per last year 3936.43 3436.48
Add: Transfer from Revaluation Reserve
Total 4723.37 4296.91
Appropriation
General Reserves 70.00 70.00 |
Dividend Tax set-off in respect of dividend from subsidiary - -
Dividend on equity shares 360.00 240.95
Tax on Dividend 74.00 49,53
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 4219.37 3936.43
Total 5105.56 4764.14

HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE AND STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
The total revenue for FY 2019-20 decreased to X 12589.81 lakhs as compared to X 13247.99 lakhs in FY
2018-19. The profit for the year stands at X 777.18 lakhs as compared to X 855.90 lakhs in FY 2018-19.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
Details of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the financial statements.

AMOUNT, IF ANY, WHICH IT PROPOSES TO CARRY TO ANY RESERVES
Your Company has transferred € 70.00 lakhs from its FY 2019-20 profits to General Reserves (previous
year 70 lakhs).

DIVIDEND

During the year 2019-2020, the Company declared an interim dividend of X 44/- per equity share
aggregating to X 220 lakhs.

The Board of Directors has not recommended any final dividend (previous year X 28.00 per share) for
the financial year ended 31°* March 2020.




Chembond Water Technologies Limited
35" Annual Report
2019-20

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO
The Company continues measures to reduce energy consumption at its plants and offices by
improving energy intensive manufacturing. The Company has not adopted any alternate source of
energy but took adequate steps for efficiently utilizing the current source of energy. There were no

conservation of energy and technology absorption during the year.
During the period under review, the foreign exchange earnings and out-go were as under:

(i) Foreign Exchange earnings

(ii)

Foreign Exchange spent

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN
Details forming part of the extract of the annual return as provided under sub-section (3) of section 92
in form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as Annexure 1.

X50,916,404.09
X'70,089,467.70

NUMBER OF BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year, six (6) Board Meetings were convened and held. The intervening gap between the
meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Name of Director Designation Board Meetings Board Meetings
entitled to attend attended
_Mr. Nirmal V. Shah Managing Director 6 6
Mr. Sameer V. Shah Director 6 6
Mr. Mahendra Ghelani Independent Director 6 3
Mr. Vinod J. Deshpande Director 6 4
Mr. Satish N. Chilekar Independent Director 6 2
COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Composition of Audit Committee and attendance of Members:
Name of the Member Designation Meetings / Attendance
07-May-19 | 24-July_19 | 12-Oct-19 | 21-Jan-20 | 16-Mar-20
Mr. Nirmal V. Shah Chairman P P P P P
Mr. Satish Chilekar Member P A A P P
Mr. Mahendra Ghelani | Member A P P P A

P — Present, A-Absent

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and attendance of Members:

Name of the Member | Designation | Meetings / Attendance
' 07-May-19

Mr. Sameer Shah Chairman P

Mr. Satish Chilekar Member P

Mr. Mahendra Ghelani | Member A

P - Present, A-Absent
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Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and attendance of Members:
Name of the Member | Designation | Meetings / Attendance
07-May-19
Mr. Nirmal Shah Chairman P
Mr. Sameer Shah Member P
\ Mr. Mahendra Ghelani | Member A

P - Present, A-Absent

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained
by them and in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors on the Board state
that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the company for that period;

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE APPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED DURING
THE YEAR

During the year, Mr. Vinod J. Deshpande (DIN: 07529370) was designated as Executive Director of the
Company from Non-executive Director w.e.f. 15t August, 2019 for a period of three years.

Mr. Sameer V. Shah, Director retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment
at the ensuing AGM.

Due to the unprecedented Covid-19 pandemic and the subsequent lockdown the Directors have
voluntarily decided to take deduction of 25% in their sitting fees since 1% April, 2020 till further notice
and the remuneration of Executive Directors were deferred.

REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR

During FY 2019-20, Mr. Nirmal V. Shah, Managing Director received X 48.34 lakhs from the Company
and X 38.16 lakhs as remuneration from Chembond Chemicals Limited, Holding Company. Mr. Vinod J.
Deshpande, Executive Director of the Company received X 45.53 lakhs as remuneration

POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
The Company has put in place appropriate policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration and
other matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Act.
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DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND REGISTRATION AS ID

All the Independent Directors of the Company have furnished a declaration to the effect that they
meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act.

As per the notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Independent Directors of your Company
have registered themselves with Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA).

DEPOSITS
Details relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Act are given below:
l. Accepted during the year
The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder.

. Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year
There are no deposits remaining unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year.

M. Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon
during the year and if so, humber of such cases and the total amount involved (i) at the
beginning of the year; (ii) maximum during the year; (iii) at the end of the vear
There have been no defaults.

DETAILS OF DEPOSITS WHICH ARE NOT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF CHAPTER V
OF THE ACT:
The Company has not received any deposit as such.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

No significant and material order has been passed by the Regulators or Courts or Trlbunals impacting
the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
There have been no material changes and commitments during the period under review which may
affect the financial position of the Company.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE
During the year under review there has been no change in the share capital structure of the Company.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS (IFC) WITH REFERENCE TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31% March 2020, the Board believes that the Company has sound IFC
commensurate with the nature and size of its business operations; wherein controls are in place and
operating effectively and no material weaknesses have been noticed. The Company has a process in
place to continuously monitor the existing controls and identify gaps, if any, and implement new
and/or improved controls wherever the effect of such gaps would have a material effect on the
Company’s operation.
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STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
FOR THE COMPANY INCLUDING IDENTIFICATION THEREIN OF ELEMENTS OF RISK, IF ANY, WHICH IN
THE OPINION OF THE BOARD MAY THREATEN THE EXISTENCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy, However, the Audit Committee reviews the
risks at regular intervals.

DETAILS ABOUT THE POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES TAKEN DURING THE YEAR

The criteria prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) with respect to
constituting CSR Committee, adopting CSR policy and spending amount on CSR activities in accordance
with the Act is applicable to your Company. The Company had framed CSR Policy and constituted CSR
Committee.

The key philosophy of all CSR initiatives of the Company is guided by three core commitments of Scale,
Impact and Sustainability. During the year, the Company has spent 23.35 Lakhs on CSR activities. The
Company has identified focus areas of engagement which have been enumerated in the Annual
Report on CSR Activities attached as Annexure 2.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

Statutory Auditor

The Statutory Auditors of your Company, M/s. Bathiya & Associates, LLP, (Firm Registration No.
101046W) were appointed in the 31 Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to hold office
for a period of five year from the conclusion of the 315t AGM till the conclusion of 36" AGM of the
Company to be held in the FY 2021. As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, their
appointment needs to be ratified by the shareholders at every AGM held during the period for five
years i.e. the period of their appointment.

There are no comments / qualifications in Auditor’s report.

Cost Auditor

As per the requirement of Central Government and pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit} Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time,
your Company has carried out audit of cost records from F. Y. 2018-19. The Cost Audit Report for FY
2018-19 was filed on 22" August, 2019 in Form CRA-4.

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee, has appointed Jitendrakumar &
Assaciates, Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 101561) as the Cost Auditor to audit the cost
records of the Company for Financial Year 2020-21. The Company is seeking the ratification of the
Shareholders for the appointment of Jitendrakumar & Associates, Cost Accountants as the Cost
Accountant of the Company for the Financial Year ending 31st March 2020 and remuneration payable.

Secretarial Auditor and Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, the Board of
Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt, Practicing Company Secretary (C.P.
No.: 124) to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year ended 31* March, 2020.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2020 has been annexed as
Annexure 3 to this Report in form MR-3.




Chembond Water Technologies Limited

35" Annual Report
2019-20

There are no Secretarial Audit observations / qualifications for the year under review.

SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY

During the year, your Company acquired 100% shares in Chembond Water Technologies (Malaysia)
Sdn. Bhd. Post-acquisition Chembond Water Technologies (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. became Wholly owned
Subsidiary Company of your Company.

The statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiary and associate
company is annexed as Annexure 4 to this report in form AOC-1.

The financials of the Subsidiary company(ies) are not consolidated with the financial of your Company,
however they are consolidated with the financials of the ultimate holding company of your Company
i.e. Chembond Chemicals Limited. Company has received consent from sharehoiders of the Company
for not consolidating financials of Chembond Clean Water Technologies Limited and Chembond Water
Technologies Limited (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. with the Company instead be consolidated with the
ultimate holding company Chembond Chemicals Limited.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 during
the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and do not
attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. Suitable disclosure as required by
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS - 24) has been made in the notes to the Financial Statements.

PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013,
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this
policy. No complaint were received during the year under review.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Board takes this opportunity to express its deep thanks to the customers, vendors, shareholders,
and bankers for the faith they have reposed in the Company. Your Directors also place on record their
sincere appreciation of the contribution of its employees for their competence, hard work, and
cooperation.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chembond Water Technologies Limited

b= |- P

Nirmal V. Shah Sameer V. Shah
Managing Director Director

DIN 00083853 DIN 00105721
Mumbai

May 28, 2020



ANNEXURE 1

ANNEXURE TO THE BOARDS’ REPORT
THE EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended 31.03.2020
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
FORM MGT-9

I. Registration and other details

CIN

U24110MH1984PLC143564

Registration Date

12" December, 1984

Name of the Company

Chembond Water Technologies Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

Company having Share Capital

Address of the Registered Office and Contact
details

Chembond Centre, EL-71 Mahape MIDC, Navi Mumbai
400710 Tel: (9122) 62643000 Fax: {(9122) 27681294

Whether listed Company

No

Name, address and contact details of Registrar
and Transfer Agent, if any

Link Intime India Private Limited

Email: accounts@linkintime.co.in

Fax: +91 022- 49186060

Phone: +91 022 49186000

C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli, Mumbai - 400083

Il. Principal Business Activities of the Company

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:

Sr. No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
products / services Product/ service company
1 Water Treatment Chemicals and 3600 96%
Equipments
lll. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate companies:
Sr. | Name and address of the | CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applicable
No. | Company subsidiary/ shares | section
associate held

1 Chembond Chemicals Limited L24100MH1975PLC018235 Holding 100% 2(46)
EL-71, Chembond Centre, Company
MIDC, Mahape, Navi Mumbai -
400710

2 Chembond Clean Water U29248MH2010PLC202124 Associate 48% 2(6)
Technologies Limited Company
EL-37, MIDC, Mahape, Navi
Mumbai — 400710

3. Chembond Water Technologies | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd
Suite 39.1.6, First Floor, Jalan
Kenari 17C, Bandar
Puchong Jaya, 47100 Puchong,
Selangor Darul
Ehsan, Malaysia




IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of
the year 1% April, 2019

No. of Shares held at the end of the
year 31% March, 2020

%

Change
during

the
year

Demat | Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual /
HUF

0.001

0.001

b) Central Govt.

0 0

0

0

0

) State Govt.(s)

0 0

0

0

0

d) Bodies
Corporate

0| 499,995

499,995

499,995

499,995

e) Banks / F

0 0

0

0

0

f) Any Other....

0 0

0

0

0

Sub-total (A)
(1):-

0 | 5,00,000

5,00,000

499,998

5,00,000

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs —
Individuals

b) Other -
Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks / Fl

e) Any Other....

Sub-total (A)
(2):-

o|lo|O|O
[ellelle}ie]

[ellelle}ie]

O|0|O|O

|0 |00

o |o|Oo|o

O | 0|0|0O

[elle}le}ie]

[elle]) o} o]

Total
shareholding of
Promoter (A} =
(A)(1)+(A)2)

0 | 5,00,000

5,00,000

100

499,998

5,00,000

100

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions
a) Mutual
Funds

b) Banks / FI

c¢) Central Govt
d) State Govt(s)
e) Venture
Capital Funds
f) Insurance
Companies




g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others

(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i} Indian

ii) Overseas
b) Individuals
i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital upto Rs.
1 lakh

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

c) Others
(specify)
Sub-total
(B)(2):-

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

5,00,000

5,00,000

100

499,998

5,00,000

100




(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. | Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning of Share holding at the end of the
No. | Name the year 1% April, 2019 year 31 March, 2020
No. of | %of Shares % of total | No. of | % of total | %of Shares | %
Shares | Pledged / Shares of | Shares | Shares of | Pledged / change
encumbered | the the encumbered | in share
to total company company | to total holding
shares shares during
the year
1 Chembond 499,994 0 99.999 | 499,994 99.999 0 0
Chemicals
Limited
2 Mr. Sameer V. 1 0 0.0002 1 0.0002 0 0
Shah Jointly
| Shilpa S. Shah*
3 Mr. Nirmal V. 1 0 0.0002 1 0.0002 0] 0
Shah Jointly
Mamta N.
Shah*
4 Mrs. Mamta 1 0 0.0002 1 0.0002 0 0
N. Shah Jointly
Nirmal V.
Shah*
5 Mr. Bhadresh 1 0 0.0002 1 0.0002 0 0]
D. Shah Jointly
Parul Shah*
6 Dr. Shilpa S. 1 0 0.0002 1 0.0002 0 0
Shah Jointly
Sameer V.,
Shah*
7 Finor Piplaj 1 0 0.0002 1 0.0002 0 0
Chemicals
Limited*
Total 500000 0 100.00 | 500000 100.00 0 0

*Nominee shareholders of Chembond Chemicals Limited

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sr. | Name of the Shareholding Shareholding Reason for change
No. | Shareholder No of shares at | % of total No of shares | % of total

the beginning | Shares of at the end of | Shares of

of the year 1st | the the year 31st | the

April, 2019 company March, 2020 company

No Change during the year




(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and
ADRs):

Sr. | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding during
No. | Shareholders of the year 1% April, 2019 the year 31% March, 2020
No. of % of total shares No. of % of total shares of
shares of the company shares the company
At the beginning of the year No Change during the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease No Change during the year

in shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus /
sweat equity etc):

At the End of the year (oron No Change during the year
the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. For Each of the Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the
No. Directors and KMP the year 1%t April, 2019 year- 31 March, 2020
Name of the No. of shares | % of total shares of | No. of shares | % of total shares of
Director/KMP the company | the company
1 Mr. Nirmal V. Shah 1 0.0002 1 0.0002
2 Mr. Sameer V. Shah 1 0.0002 1 0.0002

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(Rs in Lacs)
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the 79.63 267.15 Nil 346.78
financial year
i} Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 79.63 267.15 Nil 346.78
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year Nil 246.66 Nil 246.66
Addition
Reduction -79.63 -75.44 Nil -155.07
' Net Change -79.63 171.22 Nil 91.59
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year 0.00 438.37 Nil 438.37
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due |
Total (i+ii+iii) 0.00 438.37 Nil 438.37




VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sr.

No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Nirmal V.
Shah
(Managing
Director)

Vinod J.
Deshpande
(Executive
Director)

Total
Amount

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of

the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) iIncome-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-

tax Act, 1961

20.75

15.59

45.33

Nil

66.08

15.59

Stock Option

NA

N.A.

81.67

Sweat Equity

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

Incentive

12.00

23.41

35.41

2l 1l €5

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

Others, please specify

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

Total (A)

48.34

68.74

117.08

Ceiling as per the Act@

160

@Amount rounded off to thousand.

B. Remuneration to other Directors:

' Sr.

No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Sameer V.
Shah

Mahendra
K. Ghelani

Satish N.
Chilekar

Total
Amount
(Rs. In
Lakhs)

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board / committee
meetings, Commission, Others, please
specify

NA

0.75

Nil

0.75

Total (1)

NA

0.75

Nil

0.75

Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board / committee
meetings, Commission, Others, please
specify

Nil

NA

NA

Nil

Total (2)

Nil

NA

NA

Nil

Total (B)=(1+2)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B)

94.42

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

As per Act/Shareholders approval.




C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Sr. No. | Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
Remuneration
CEO cs CFO Total
1, Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961 NA NA NA NA
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax
Arct 10R1
2. Stock Option NA NA NA NA
3. Sweat Equity NA NA NA NA
4, Commission
- s % of NA NA NA | NA
profit
- others. specifv
5. Othe'rs, please NA NA NA NA
specify
Total Nil Nil Nil Nil

VIl, PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
No penalties/punishment/compounding of offences were levied on the Company or Director or any of its
officers during the year under review.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Che w Water Technologies Limited
=

, \é’ 4 Wﬂ,—ﬁ
Nirmal V=Shah Sameer V. Shah
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00083853 DIN: 00105721
Mumbai

May 28, 2020



Annexure 2 to Boards' report

Report on Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) activities for the Financial Year 2019-20

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR
Policy including overview of projects
or programs proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to the
web-link to the CSR Policy and
Projects or Programs.

The Company has done various CSR activities through
Visan Trust in the areas of education to underprivileged
children, healthcare, women empowerment, health
training and vocational training center etc. Some of the
Projects are Visan Trust Girls Education Project and
Chembond Children’s Centre which runs non-formal
education centres at Pasthal and Shirgaon near Tarapur.

Composition of Committee

Mr. Nirmal V. Shah — Chairman
Mr. Sameer V. Shah — Member
Mr. Mahendra Ghelani — Member

Average Net Profit of the Company
for the last 3 FY’s

X 1161.54 lakhs

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of | X 23.23 lakhs

the amount mentioned in item 3

above)

Details of CSR spent during the

Financial Year

a. Total amount spent for the | X23.25 lakhs
Financial year.

b. Amount unspent, if any. Nil

¢. Manner in which the amount
spent during the Financial year.

Details provided in the table given below.

Reason for not spending the amount !

earmarked.

NA




Details of amount spent on CSR activities during the Financial Year 2019-20

for treatment
of Cancer
Victims

immune deficiency
virus, acquired
immune deficiency
syndrome, malaria
and other disease

{v)

(X in Lakhs)

Sr. | CSR Project or | Sector in which the | Project or Amount | Amount Cumulative | Amount spent

No. | activity project is covered Program (1) Outlay spent on the | Expenditure | through
identified (Clause no. of Local area or (Budget) | Projects or upto the Implementing

Schedule VII to the | other Project Programs reporting Agency
Companies Act, (2) specify the | or Sub heads: period i.e.
2013.) State and Program | (1) Direct FY 2019-20

District where | wise Expenditure

projects or on Projects

programs was or Programs

undertaken (2)

Overheads

1 Promotion of Education Clause Pasthal and 23.23 23.25 62.10 | Through Visan
Education, (ii) Shirgaon near Trust
Women Women Tarapur,
empowerment | Empowerment (iii) | Maharashtra
and vocational | Vocational Training
training (vii)

2 Healthcare, Education Clause Jagadia, 0 0 2.00 | Through Seva
women (ii) Gujarat Rural
empowerment, | Women
child Empowerment {iii)
education, Healthcare (iv)
community Vocational Training
health training, | (vii)
eye care
project and
Vocational
training centre N

3 Contribution combating human | Mumbai 0 0 0.10 | Through Awaaz,

(Institute of
Chemical
Technology)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chembond Water Technologies Limited

Nirmal \ghah

Managing Director
DIN: 00083853

Mumbai

May 28, 2020

L

Sameer V. Shah
Director
DIN: 00105721




Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Chembond Water Technologies Limited

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Chembond Water Technologies Limited (Hereinafter
called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provides me a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion
thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s statutory registers, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed with the Registrar of Companies (‘the ROC’), soft copy of the various records sent over
mail as provided by the Company and other relevant records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended 31 March, 2020 prima facie complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder.

| have examined the statutory registers, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed with the ROC
and other relevant records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended 315 March,
2020 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made there under;

(i) | further report that, the management has identified and confirm the other laws as
specifically applicable to the Company and the Company have proper system to comply with
the provisions of the respective Acts, rules and Regulations;

(iii)  The Company has prima facie complied with the Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(iv) The management is responsible for compliances of all business iaw includes maintenance of
statutory registers and records required by the concerned authorities and internal control of
the concerned department and there are prima facie adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor & ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations & guidelines.

During the period under review, | am of the opinion that the Company has prima facie complied with
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

| further report that:

1. | have not examined the Financial Statement, financial Books & related financial Act like
income Tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax Act, ESIC, Provident Fund &



Professional Tax, Related Party Transactions etc. For these matters, | rely on the report of
statutory auditor’s for Financial Statement for the year ended 31% March, 2020.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Directors
as prescribed under the Act. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

As per the information provided, prima facie adequate notice is given to all directors to
schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven
days in advance.

As per the information provided and as per minutes of the meetings, majority decisions of
the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views were found as part of the minutes.

During the period under review, the Company has acquired 100.00% Equity Shares of
Chembond Water Technologies (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. (Formerly known as the Chembond
Chemicals (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.). Post acquisition Chembond Water Technologies (Malaysia)
Sdn. Bhd. becomes Subsidiary Company of the Company.

| further report that during the period under review, the Company has filed Forms required to be
filed within prescribed time and few with the additional fees.

| further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of:

Pubtic/ Rights/ Preferential issue of shares/debentures/ sweat equity, etc.;

Issue of equity shares under Employee Stock Option Scheme;

Redemption / Buy- back of securities;

Major decisions taken by the Members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies Act,
2013 which would have major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

Merger / amalgamation /Reconstruction etc.

Foreign Technical Collaborations.

| further report that:

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company.
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on my audit.

| have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the Secretarial records. |
believe that the processes and practices, | followed, provide a reasonable basis for my
opinion.

Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events etc.

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of Company.



5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules,
Regulations, Standards is the responsibility of the Management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

7. Due to COVID - 19 and continuous Lockdown, | am unable to partially verify the information
physically, therefore I rely on the information provided by the Company in electronic mode.

Place: Mumbai Virendra G. Bhatt
Date: 28% May, 2020 ACS No.: 1157
COP No.: 124

UDIN: A001157B000290743



Annexure 4 to Boards’ Report

Form AOC-1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint venture as on 315 March,
2020
Part “A”: Subsidiaries (Rs.in Lakhs)
Sr. Name of subsidiary ° c c
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e 100% Equity Shares acquired during the FY 2019-20.
e ** Malaysia Ringgit- 1RM = INR 17.46 as on 31.03.2020.
Part “B”
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures.
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Sr. No. |Particulars (Associate)
1 Name of Associate Chembond Clean Water Technologies Limited
2 Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2020
3 Shares of Associate held by the Company on the year end As follows
A No. of shares 39,73,467
B Amount of Investment in Associates 635.75
C Extend of holding (%) 48.00%
4 Description of how there is significant influence Under the same Management
5 Reason why the associate is not consolidated The same is consolidated with the ultimate holding Company.
6 Networth attributable to shareholding as per latest 404.69
audited Balance Sheet
7 Profit / Loss for the year 777.18
A Considered in Consolidation Not considered for consolidation.
B Not Considered in Consolidation It is being consolidated with ultimate holding company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chembo

Nirmal V. Shah
Managing Director
DIN 00083853

Mumbai

nd Water Technologies Limited

Sameer V. Shah

Director
DIN 00105721

-

28" May, 2020




ATHIYA

& ASSOCIATES LLP CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
Chembond Water Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements:
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Chembond Water Technologies Limited (“the
Company””), which comprise the balance sheet as at 3 Ist March 2020, the statement of Profit and
Loss (including other comprehensive loss), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(*“Act™ in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st
March 2020, and profit and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufticient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,

Emphasis of Matter — Effects of COVID-19

We draw attention to Note 46 in the financial statements, which describes the uncertainties and
the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the Company’s operations and financial statements as -

Bathiya & Associates LLP

202 - A, Harmony, T :02265620111/12
Court Naka, Station Road, E : info@bathlya.com
Thane (W) - 400 601. bathiya.com



assessed by the management. The actual results may differ from such estimates depending on
future developments. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Directors Report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the India Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design.
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial stalements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related fo going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could redsonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ot the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative




factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and
(if) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. -

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation
of the financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books:

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of changes in
equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of these financial
statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March, 2020, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31° March, 2020, from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in “Annexure B”; and

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:




i. There were no pending litigations which would impact the financial
position of the Company.

ii. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amount required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company in accordance to the provision of the
Act, and rules made there under.

4. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section [97(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid and / or provided remuneration to the director during the year ended
31% March, 2020 in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

For Bathiya & Associates LLI’
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101046W / W100063

o A

Jatin A. Thakkar
Partner
Membership No.: 134767

Place : Mumbai
Date : 28" May, 2020
UDIN : 20134767AAAAAM1482



Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph I under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremehts’ section
of our report of even date for the year ended 3 1°' March, 2020)

Report on Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) of
the Company,

(i) In respect of Fixed Assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
pany p
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets,

(b) As per the information and explanations given to us, all the assets have been physicaily
verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the year. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) The Company does not hold any immovable property. Therefore, in our opinion, clause
(i) (¢) of the aforesaid Order is not applicabie to the Company.

(i1) In respect of its Inventories:

As per the information and explanations given to us, the physical verification of inventories
has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and as explained to us the
discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records were
not material.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Act. Accordingly, clause (iii) (a), (b} and (¢) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, in respect of investments, The
Company has not given loans, given guarantees and provided securities covered by
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year under sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thercunder.
Therefore, clause (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) On the basis of explanation and representation given by the management and on our broad
review of the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (cost
records and audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148(1)
of the Act, we are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have been made
and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with
a view to determine whether they aré accurate or complete. o




(vii)

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) As per information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory dues including

provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, profession tax, Goods and
Service Tax, custom duty, cess and other statutory dues applicable to the Company have
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been
delays in deposit in a few cases which are not serious. Further, there are no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of income tax, Goods and Service Tax, customs duty and cess
which were in arrears, as at 315 March, 2020 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income

(viii)

(ix)

)

tax, Value Added Tax, service tax, Goods and Service Tax, custom duty, excise duty and
cess, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except in the case of
Value Added Tax and income tax wherein the following disputes are pending:

Name of Amount Period to which the Forum where dispute is
statute (Rs.) amount relates pending
(Financial Year)
Income Tax 3,04,960 2008-09 Deputy Commissioner of
Income Tax, Mumbai
Income Tax 330 2009-10 Deputy Commissioner of
Income Tax, Mumbai
Income Tax 1,39,320 Various Years Assistant Commissioner of
(TDS) (including 2018-19) | Income Tax, Centralised
Processing Cell - TDS
Income Tax 7,32,550 2017-18 Demand raised by CPC,
Bangalore
Tamil Nady 2,21,560 2016-17 Demand raised in VAT Audit
Value  Added Report, Tamil Nadu
Tax Act
TOTAL 13,98,726

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayments of dues to the banks, financial institutions,
Government or debenture holders.

On the basis of records of the Company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or term loan during the year,
Therefore, the clause (ix) of the aforesaid Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any
instances of fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees noticed or reported during the year, nor we have been informed of such case
by the management.




(x)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

On the basis of records of the Company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration has been paid and/or provided
in-accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi company, hence the clause (xii) of the aforesaid Order is not
applicable to the Company.

On the basis of records of the Company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has entered into all transactions with related
parties in compliance with Section 177 and Section 188 of the Act, where applicable and
the same is disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

The Company has not made any preferential allotments or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Therefore, clause
(xiv) of the aforesaid Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of records of the Company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with directors. Therefore,
clause (xv) of the aforesaid Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, hence clause (xvi} of the aforesaid Order is not applicable to the
Company.

For Bathiya & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 101046 W/W 100063

okt /%W\ '

Jatin A. Thakkar

Partner

Membership Number: 134767

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28™ May, 2020



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date for the year ended March 31, 2020)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Chembond Water
Technologies Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such contrals operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selegted depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal -financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of Management and directors of the Company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financiai Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper Management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in cenditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting wete operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note.

For Bathiya & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101046W / W 100063

s ot
Jatin A Thakkar

Partner
Membership No.: 134767

Place : Mumbai
Date : 28" May, 2020




Chembond Water Technologies Ltd.
Balance Sheet ag at 31st March 2020

| ASSETS

1

Non-currenl assels

(a) Properly, plant and equipment

{b) Cther Intangible Assels

{c) Financial Assels
Hlnvestments
Hi)Other financial assels

(d) Income tax asset (nel)

(e) Other ren-current assels
Total Non - Current Assets

Curreni Assels

{a) Inventories

{b) Financial Assets
Hnvestments
iy Trade receivables
iii)Cash and cash equivalents
iv)Other bank balances
viLoans
vi)Other financial assets

{c) Curent Tax (Net)

(d). Other current assels
Total Current Assels

Total Assets

i EQUITY AND UIABILTTIES

1

Equity

{a) Share capital

(b} Other equity
Total Equity

Non-Current Liabilities

{a) Financial iabilties
)Borrowings

(b) Provisions

(c) Deferred lax fiabilities (Net)
Total Non - Current Liabilities

Current liabifities
{a} Financial lizbilittes
hBarowings
iiyTrade payables
Trade payables -MSMED
Trade payables -Others
ii}Other financial iabilities
() Other current liakilities
(¢} Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities
Significanl Accounling Policies and Notes on Financial Stalements

Notes As at 31/03/2020 As at 31/03/2019
(Rs. In lakhs) {Rs. In lakhs)
3 413.80 393.25
3 10.59 237
4 698.44 635.75
5 733.58 ,123.47
8 210.21 109.89
7 10.73 10.73
2,077.44 2,275.46
8 408 58 566.57
9 59,91 13.61
10 3,608.67 4,367.44
11 60.26 53.53
12 710.00 78.81]
13 3.65 3.51
14 ‘ 29,10 31.24
15 36.01 81.39
8 138.71 150.49
i 5,241.86 5,046.67
7,319.34 7,622.13
i7 } 50.00 50,00
18 5,105.56 4,764.14
5,155.56 4,814.14
19 38.37 37.15
20 43.64 3226
21 3.87 19.76
85,89 89.17
22 400.00 309.63
23 254.57 708.69
23 1,018.57 1,251.95
24 300.23 295,74
25 103.72 152,22
26 0.70 0.58
2,077.83 ~ 2,718.82
7,319.34 789313
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Chembond Water Technologies Lid.
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020

Notes As at 34103/2020 As at 21/03/2019
{Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

| Revenue From Operations 27 12,423.19 13,165.41
I Other Income 287 168.62 82.58
Il Total Revenue {{+11} 12,58¢.84 13,247.99
IV Expenses:

Cost of Malerfals Consumed 29 5,749.20 6,822.05

Purchases of Stack-in-trads 30 348.12 358.27

Changes in invenlores of Finished goods and Stock-in-Trade 66.59 (115.47)

Employge Benefits Expense 32 2,604.03 2,146.15

Finance Costs 33 82.60 " 4558

Depreciation and Amertisation expense 34 87.14 70.37

Other Expenses 35 2,619.17 270216

Total Expenses 11,556.85 12,029,141
V  Profit before Exceptionai items and Tax 1.032.97 1,218.89
Vi Exceptional ilems - -
Vil Profit before Tax 1,032,87 1,218.89
VI Tax Expense

Current Tax 271.87 35062

Deferred Tax (15.88} 12.36

Tolal Tax Expense 255.7¢8 382.99
IX Profit for the Year 77718 §55.90
X Cther Comprehenshive income
1 i) fems that will not ke reclassilied o profit or loss {15.48) (4.72)

i} Income Tax relating to items thal will nol be reclassified to profit or loss 3.87 1.38
2 i) ltems that will be reclassified ic profi{ or ioss

iy Income Tax relating to ¥ems that will be reclassified lo profit or loss

Other Comprehensive Income (1+2} (11.51) (3.35}

Total Comprehensive Income (IX+X) 765.67 852,55
X) Earming Per £quity Share of Face Value of Rs. 10 each 42

Baslc (In Rs.) 195,44 17118

Diluted (in Rs.) 158.44 171.18
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Chembond Water Technologies Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the Half Year ended 3tst March, 2020

{ Al amount are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and uniess stated otherwise)

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended 3tst March, 2020

Year ended 31st March, 2019

A, [Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit before tax 1,032.87 1,218.89
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortization 87.14 70.37
Loss on Sale of Property Plant & Equipement 0.76
Finance Cost 82.60 45.58
470.50 115.95
Less:
Fareign Exchange Fluctuation
" |Net Gain on Investmenis
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipement 5.22
Bividend Received {7.81)
interest on bank deposits and loans at amoriised cost 88,36 {67.45)
Other Comprehansive income
(86.36) (70.04)
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,117.11 1,284.80
Adjustrments for
Trade and Other Receivables 613,28 276,02
Inventories 68.09 (428.66)
Trade and Other Payables (682.94) 380.36
Other Adjustments 10.08
Other Financizal Assets 389.89 (465.59)
Other Assets{Income Tax asset) 18,99
Other Lizbiiities and Provisions - (8.12)
Adjustment in Retained earnings of June 9.75
398.07 (217.96)
Cash generated from operating activities B 1,515,147 1,046.84
income taxes paid (Nel of Refund) (303.71) (448.31)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A} 1,211.46 598.54
B. |Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Payment to acquire Properly, plant & equipments {117.14) {221.85)
Proceeeds from Sale of Property, plant & eguipments 0.38 122.42
Purchase of lavestment (468.98) (918.12)
Sale of Invesiment 360.00 430.42
Dividend ncome 7.81
Loans given to Employees 0.14} 3.60
Interest on bank depdsits and loans at amortised cost 86.36 '67.45
Net cash used in investing activities {B) {138.53) {509.07)
C. |Cash Flow From Financing Activities:
Proceeds/(Repayment) of long Term Borrowings 1.22 037
Proceeds/{Repayment} of Short Term Borrowings 90.37 22.27
Dividend paid (434.00) {290.48)
Tax on dividend paid :
Finance Cost {82.60) (45.58)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (425.00) {313.79)
Net {decrease) f increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 646.93 {224.33)
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Bank Balances as on Opening 132.33 356.66
Cash and Cash Equivaients and Other Bank Balances as an Clesing | 779.26 132.33

As per our attached report of even date

For Bathiya & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101046W/W100063

Jatin A. Thakkar
Partner
Membership No. : 134757

Place : Mumbai.
Date: 28th May, 2020

For and on hehaif of the Board of Directors
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-

<
Nirmal V. Shah Sameer V. Shah
Director Director
DIN : 00083853 DIN: 00105721

Place : Mumbai. Place : Mumba
Date: 28th May, 2020 Date: 28th May

Y
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Chembond Water Technologies Ltd.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH 2020

(a) Equity share capital

Balance as at 31st March 2018
Changes in equity share capital
Balance as al 31 March 2019
Changes in equity share capital
Balance as al 31 March 2020

{b) Other Equity

No, of Shares [Rs. In lakhs}
5,00,000 50
5,090,000 50
$,00,000 50

Reserves and Surplus [a]o]]
Retained Rem:fats;‘uerers:nts
Particulars Generaj Reserve| earnings/Profit & "8 | Totat other equity
defined benefit
Loss Account
Pians

Balance as at 3ist March 2018 761.22 3,436.48 2.59 4,200.32
Profit for the year 855,90 855.80
Effacts of previous year iransactions 4.54 4.54
Cther comprehensive income for the year {6.10) (6.10}
Total Comprehensive

Dividend Paid {240.95) {240.86)
Tayx, on Dividend Paid (49.53) {49.63)
Set off of Dividend Tax in respect of Dividend from Subsidiary Company :

Transferred o General Reserve 70.00 {70.00)

Transferred from Refained Eamings

Balance as at 31st March 2019 §31.22 3,836.43 (2.51) 4,764,18
Profit for the year 777.18

Effects of previcus year iransacticns 8.75

Other comprehensive income for the year (11.51) {11.51)
Total Comprehenslve Income

Transactions with owners of the company

Transferred to General Reserve 70.00 (70.00) (0.00)
interim Dividend on Equity Shares (220.00} {220.00}
inferim Dividend Disiributicn Tax {45.22) {45.22)
Dividend Paid {140,00) (140.00%
Tax on Dividend Paid (28.78) (28.78)
Set off of Dividend Tax In respeci of Dividend from Subsidiary Company

Balance as at 31st March 2020 901,22 4,219,37 {15,02) 5,108.60




Chembond Water Technologies Limited
Notes ferming part of the Financiai Siatements as at 31st March, 2020

NQTE 1 - COMPANY OVERVIEW
‘Thembond Water Technologies Lid. is a subsidiary of Chembond Chemicals Lid.
Chembond is an established manufacturar of Specialty chemicals in [ndia since 1975. We have been operating in the value added Water
Treatment Solutions field since 1984 and serve diverse industries like Sieel, Power, Fertilizers, Refineries, Petrochemicals, Mining, Sugar, paper
and pulp, textile and Municipal corporation.
Our water management involves the use of the state-of-the-art chemical technology supported by onsite services to ensure the continuous and
consistent perfermance monitoring of the treatment program.
The Company has been incorporated on December 12, 1984. -

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are separate financtal statements of the Company (also called standalcne financial statements). The Company has
prepared financiat statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 20115 (as amended) together with the comparative penod data as at and for the year ended
March 31, 2019.

Far all the periods up to the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of previous GAAP, which inciudes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2008 {as amended).

A Basis of Preparation, measurement and Transition fo Ind AS
The financial statements of the Company are prepared in Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards {'Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Cempanies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Stalements are prepared under the historical cost cenvention
on the accruat basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values

Effective April 4, 2017 the Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoplion as carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-
time Adoption of indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2016 as the {ransition date. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting
Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Ruie 7 of the Comapnies (Accounis) Rules, 2014
({GAAP), which was the previous GAAP,

The accounting policies have been applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial stalements except where a newly-issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in
use.

The financial statementis are prepared in INR, which is the company’s functional currency

B Current and Non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balace sheet based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:
(i} Expected fo be realised or intendad {o be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
(i) Held primarily for the purpose of trading
(iiiy Expacted to be realised within twelve months after the reporiing periad, of

(iv} Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setlle a lability for atieast twelve months after the reporting period
Al other asseis are classified as non-current.

A liabitity is current when:

(i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

{ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

{iif} It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

{iv) There is no unconditionaf right tc defer the seiilement of the liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting period

The Company ciassifies ali ither liabilities as non-current. ‘

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are classified as non-cuuent assets and liabllities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The company
has identified twelve months as its normal cperating cycie. .

C Use of Estimates )
The preparatior of the Company’s financial staiements requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in cuicomes that reguire a material adiustment fo the carrying amount
of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The areas invelving critical estimates or judgements are:
a, Estimation of taxes
h. Determination of the estimated useful lives of intangible assets and determining intangibie assets having an indefinite useful life.
c.Defermination of the estimated useful fives of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of the cost may be capitalized
d. Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations, key aciuarial assumptions
e. Recognition and measurement of provisions and centingencies, key assumptions about the likeiihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources
f. Fair value of financial instruments




.. Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE" Is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is prebable thal the future economic

. henefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably,
PPE are initially recognised at cost, The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price (including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes bui excluding any trade discount and rebates), and any direcily attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working cendition and location
for its intended use.
Subsequent fo initial recognition, PPE are stated al cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent
expenditure relating to PPE is capitalizes only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow io the Company
and the cost of the ilem can be measured reliably, When an #em of PPE is replaced, then its carrying amonut is derecognised and the cost of
the new item of PPE is recognised. Further, in case the replaced part was not deprecialed separately, the cost of the replacemnet is used as an
indication to determinethe cost of the replaced par at the timée it was acquired, All other repair and maintenance cost are recogrised in
Statement of profit and loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an assel after ifs use is included in
the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met,

An ftem of PPE and any significant part initially recegnised is deresongnised upon dispesal or when no future economic benefits are expecled
fram its use or disposal. Any gains or losses arising from de-recognition of PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceads and the carrying ameunt of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss when the PPE is derecognised.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/pari of the asset separately, if the coraponent/part has a cost which is
significant to the tetal cest of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset.

intangible Assets
Intangible Assets are stated at hisiorical cost less accumulated amertisation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Profit or Loss on disposal
of intangible assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depraciation on PPE has been provided based on useful fife of the assets in accordance with Schedule 1l of the Companies Act, 2013, under
Wiriiten Down Value method. Depreciation on assets acquired / disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the
date of addition / disposal. Residual value for all assets (including intangible assets) are considered at 5% of cost of acquisition of an asset.
Depraciation { Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each reperting date and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate. Amortisaticn on Infangible asset consisting of computer softwares has been provided based on their useful life which is estimated
as 3 years, under the Written Down Value method (WDV).

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of PPE are reviewed on a reguiar basis and changes in estimates, when relevant,
are accounted for on a prospective basis

Capital Work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of assets thal are yet not ready for their intended use at the balance sheet dale. Advances given
towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as Capital Advances under Other Non-Current Assets.

E Inventories

inventories are valued at lower of the cost defermined on weighted average basis or net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net
realisable value is made on an item-by-iiem basis. Damaged, unserviceable and inert stocks are valued at net realizable vaiue.

Cost of raw materials, packing materials and stores spares and consumabies Stocks is determined so as to axclude from the cost, taxes and
duties which are subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities.

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress inciudes the cost of materials,an appropriate ailocation of overheads and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

F Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured ai the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duty and
- net of returns, trade discount or rebates and applicable taxes and duties coliected on behalf of the government and which are levied on such
sales,

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefiis will
flow te the Company.

i. Revenue frem saie of goods is recagnised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership o the buyer as per terms of Contract,
usually on delivery of goods.

ii. Revenue from services is recognised pro-rata as and when services are rendered over a specified period of time. The company collects
servive tax / goods and service tax on behalf of the government and therefore it is not an economic benefit fiowing to the company. Hence it is
excluded from the revenue.

G interest income is recognised using effeclive intesest method on time propoertion basis taking in to account the amount ouistanding.
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is esiablished, which is generally when shareholders approve
the dividend,

H Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Cempany is Indian rupee (3).
Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted in the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transaction .Monetary assets and Jiabilities dencminated in foreign currency are translated at functional currency closing rate of
exchange at the repoding date. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised in the
statement of profit and ioss.
Non-menetory assats and llabilities that are measured in lepm oS!

g gr;g;i: Ted

Al cost in foraign currencies are not-




Impairment of Assets

(i) Financial assets {other than al fair vaiue)

The Company assesses at each date of Balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires
axpecled credit lossas to be measured through a loss allowance. The-Company recognises lifetime expected iosses for all coniract assets
andfor all frade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at
an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

(i) Non-financial éssets
Tangihie and intangible assefs

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluaied for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their
carrying ameunts may not be recoverable. if any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost te sell and
the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis uniess the asset does not generate cash flows thal are largely independent of those
from cother assets. in such cases, the recoverable amont is determined for the cash generaiing unit {CGU) to which the assets belongs.

If the recoverable armount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is
reduced fo its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recegnised in the Siatement of profit and loss.

Retirement Benefits :

{a) Short term Employee Benefits :

All employee benefits payable wholly withir twelva months of rendering the service are classified as short tarm employee benefits and they are
recognized in the period In which the employse renders the related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of shert term
empicyee benefits expected fo be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Post Employment Benefits

I, PBefined Contribution Plan :

Defined confribution plans are employee state insurance scheme and Government administered pension fund scheme for ail applicabie
empleyees and superannuation scheme for eligible employees.

Recegnition-and measurement of defined ceniribution plans:

The Company recognizes contribution payable to a defined contribution plan as an expense in the Statemen't of Profit and Loss when the

_ employees rander services to the Company during the reporting period. If the contributions payable for services received from employees before

the reporting date exceeds the contributions already paid, the deficit payable is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution afready
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received befora the reporting date, the excess is recognized as an
asset to the extent that the prepayment will fead tc, for exampie, a reduction in future payments or & cash refund.

Il. Defined Benefit plans:

Provident Fund scheme

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund scheme in accordance with the statutory provisions
Gratuity scheme

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for empleyees. The Company contribuies fo a separate entity {a fund) administered by
LIC, towards meeting the Gratuity obiigation.

Penston Scheme:

The Company operates a defined benefit pension plan for certain specified employees and is payable upon the employee satisfying certain
conditions, as approved by the Beard of Directors.

Recognition and measurement of Defined Benefit plans: :

The cest of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projecied Unit Credit method with actuarial vaiuations being carned out at each
reporting date. The defined benefit obligations recognized in the Balance Shest represent the present value of the defined benefit obligations as
reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if applicable. Any defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit obligations resulting from this
caicutation) is recognized representing the present value of available refunds and reductions in fuiure contributions to the plan.

in the Sstatement of Pprefit and Lloss. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit Bability

/ (asset) comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on the plan assets (excluding amounts included in nel Interest on the net defined
benefit fiability/assei), are recognized in Cther Comprehensive Income. Such remeasurements are not reciassified to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the subsequent periods,

The Company presents the above liability/(asset) as current and non-current in the Balance Sheet as per acluarial valuaiion by the independent
actuary; however, the entire fiability towards gratuity is considered as current as the Company will contribute this ameunt to the gratuity fund
within the next twelve months.

COther Long Term Employee Benefits:
The Company dees not allow any accumulation of leavebalance or encashment thereof.

Provision For Current & Deferred Tax
Incarme tax expenses comprises of current and deferred tax expense and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that
it refates to items recognized direcily in equity or in OCI, in which case, the tax is also recognised in direclly in equity or OCI| respectively,

Current Tax

Current tax is the amount expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable profit or loss fer the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
recoverable in respect of previous years. I is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacied by the end of reporting
period.Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicabie tax regulations are




Deferred Tax

Deferred Income Tax is recognised using the Balance sheet approach. Deferrad income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible
and taxabie femporary differences arising between ihe tax base of assets and their carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax
arisies from the initial recognition of an assets or liabiiity in a transaction that is not & business combination and affecis neither accounting ner
taxable profit or loss at the time of the fransaction.

Deferred income {ax asseis are recognised {o the exant that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income lax asseis is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxabie profit will be available to aliow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and lizbilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
ihe temporary differences are expecied to be received or settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the relevant entity
intends to settles its current tax assets and labilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Allernative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax taws in India, which is likely to give future economic
benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the
‘Balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future sconomic benefit associated with the asset will be
reatised.

The Company recognises interest levied and penalties related to income tax assessments in finance costs.

Earnings Per Share :

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share ("EPS") data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or
loss attributable to equity sharehaiders of the Company by the weighted average number of equily shares outstanding during the peried. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss atiributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which includes all stock options granted to empioyees.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilufive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any shars splits and
bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

Provision, Contingent Liabilities And Centingent Assets :

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present cbligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it Is probabie that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required fo settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation, If the effect of the time value of meney Is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessmenis of the fime value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due fo the passage of fime is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent liability is disciosed for,
{}) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by futuras events nof whally within the control of the Company, or

. {il) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of rescurces will be required to settle the obligation or a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made ‘

Contingent Assets are'not recognised in the financial stalements.

Dividend distribution io equity shareholders

Dividend 1o equity sharehalders is recognised as a loability in the peried int which the dividends are approved by the equity sharehciders. Interim .
dividends that are declared by the Board of Directors withoui the need for equity shareholders' approvals are recognised as & liability and
deducted from shareholders’ equity in the year in which dividends are declared by the Board of directars,

Lease Accounting

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownersh:p to the lessee is classified as a finance lease, All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Company as a iessee

Finance leases are capitalised at the commeancement of the iease at the mceptlon date fair value of the leased properiy or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liabifity to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation. Lease payments are apporiioned befween finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as {o achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assats, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the pericds in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are generally recognised as an expense in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Where the
rentals are structured sclely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost

increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue, Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are also
recognised as expanses in the pericds in which they are incurred.




.. Company as a lessor

Rental income from operaling lease is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentais are
structured solely to increase in fine with expected general inflafion to compensate for the Company's expected infiaticnary cost increases, such
increases are recognised in the year in which such benefiis accrue. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an cperating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as renta! income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Amcunts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease
inceme is allocated fo accounting periods sc as io reflect a constant periodic rate of refurn on the Company's net invesiment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amertised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.

Trade Payables

These amounis represent liabiiities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The
amounts are usually unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabiiities uniess payment is not due within tweive months
after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value.

Financia! Instruments

Finacial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual pravisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and liablities are initially measured at fair value. Transacion costa that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities ( other than financial assets and finacial liabiiifies at fair value through profif or loss) are added te or deducted from
the fair value measured on initial recognition of finanvial assets or financial liability.

I. Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers al} highiy liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible intc known amounts of cash that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricied for withdrawai and usage.

I1. Financial assets at amertised cost

Financial assets are subsequentlymeasure at amoriised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is o hoid these
assets 1o collect contractual cash flows and the contraciual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash fiows that are solely
paymeants of principat and interest on the principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

lll. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measurad at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount cutstanding and selling financial assets.

The company has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of equity
investments not held for trading.

IV, Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or less unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initizl recognition. The fransaction cosis directly atiributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabifities at fair
value through profit or foss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

V. Financiat liabilities
Financial fabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed.

VI, Equity instruments

An equity instruments is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its [iabiiities. Equity
insirumerds recognised by the company are recognised at the proceeds received net off direct issue cost.
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Ghembond Water Technologies Ltd.
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
Financial Assets {Non-Cuzrent)

a. Investments
investment in equily instruments of subsidiaries amertised at cost
Unquoted
39,73,467 (39,73,467) Equity Shares of Chembond Clean Water

Technologies Lid of Rs.10/- each fully paid up,
(Canstituting 47.99% (47.99%) of the said Company's paid up capilal)

2,00,008 (NIL) Equity Shares of Chembaond Chemicals (Malaysia) SDN. BHD
of RM.1.86/- each fully paid up
{Constituting 100 % {NIL) of Ihe said Company's paid up capital)

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments

Other Financial Assets
(Unsecured & considered good)

Fixed Deposit of Maturity of More than 12 Months (Under tien}
Other Deposits

income tax asset (net)

Income Tax (Net of Provision}

Gther non-current assets

VAT Refund Receivable

inventories
{Al lower of Gosi and Net Realisable Value)

Raw Material
Packing Melerial

Finished Goods
Stock-in-Trade

Investments {Current}

1875.5850 (481.9) Units of NIPPON INDIA -~ MONEY MARKET FUND (G)

Aggregate amount of Quoted Invesiments and Market Value therof

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured Considered Good
Unsecured Considered doubtful
Less : Provision for Doubtfui Debis

a For Related party transactions Refer Note No.39
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with banks

In Current Accounts
Cash on hand

Total

Total

Total

Totai

Total

Total

Total

Total

As at 31/03/2020

As at 31/03/2019

{Rs. in lakhs) [Rs. [n lakhs}
635,75 635.75
52,68 0.00
698,44 635.75
698.44 635.75
730.58 1,120.47
. 3.00 3.00
733.58 1,123.47
210.21 109.89
210.21 109.88
10.73 10.73
ECYERES 10.73
331.76 330.89
+4.80 46.88
114,80 167.4¢
37.31 51.32
498,58 - 566.67
59.91 13.61
'50.51 - 13.61
50.91 13.61

3,606.67 4,367.44

36.88
(35.88)

3,696.57 4,367.44
69.24 53.48
0.01 0.05
69.26 53.53
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OTHER BANK BALANGES

Deposil money (including deposils with orginal maturily of mere than 3 months) (Under Lien)

Loans
(Unsecured & considered good}
Loan and advance lo Empioyees

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

{Unsecured & considered good)

Security Deposits

Current Tax (Net)

Current Tax (Nef)

Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses
Advances for supply of goods and services
Balances with government authorities

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
40,00,000 (10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-(Rs.10/) each

lssued, Subscribed and Paid up
500000 (500000) Equity Shares of
Rs,10/-{Rs.10/-} each fully paid up

Reconcifiation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginnlng and
at the end of the reporting year:

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year

Deductions during the vear

Number of shares ouistanding at the end of the year

Detalis of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares
Name of the Shareholder

Chembond Chemicals Limited and its nominees
% held

OTHER EQUITY

‘General Reserve

As at 310312020

As at 31/03/2019

{Rs. In lakhs) {Rs. In Jakhs}

710.00 78.81

Total 710.00 7881
2.65 3.54

Tatal 355 350
29.40 31.24

Totat 7510 31.24
36.01 81.39

Total 36.01 8130
12,16 11,86

114.51 92.44

12.05 46.21

Total 136.74 150.49
100.60 100.00

50.00 50.00
Totat £0.00 50.00
5,00,000 5,00,000

506,000

5,00,000

As at 31/3/2020
No of Shares

5,00,000
100.00%

As at 31/2/2019
No of Shares

5,00,000
100.00%

As at 3132020

As at 3132019
{Rs. in.lakhs)

{Rs. In lakhs)

As per fast year 831.22 761.22
Add: Transfer from Prefit & Loss A/c. 70.00 70.00
901.22 831.22
Retained Earnings
As per last year 3,936.43 3.436.48
Add: Profit for the Year 786.83 860.44
4,723.37 4,206.91
Less: Appropriations
Transferred to General Reserve -70.00/ {70.00}
Interim Dividend (220.00)
Tax on interim Dividend {46.22)
Previous Year Dividend {140.00) {240,95)
Tax on previous Year Dividend (28.78) {49.53
(504.00) (360.48)
Other Comgrehensive Income (OCH)
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit Plans
As per lasl year 13.51) 2.59
Movement During the Year {11.51) (612
{15.02} {3.51)
5,106.56 4,764.14
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BORROWINGS
Unsecured

Deater Deposits

" Provisions- Non Current

Provision for Gratuity
Deferred Tax Liability (net}

Deferred tax Liabifity
Depreciation
Investments al Falr Value

Deferred tax Assel
Provision for Doubiful Debls

Net Deferred Tax Liability
CURRENT BORROWINGS
(Repayabrle on demand)
Secured

Loan from Banks

Unsecured
Loan from Related Parties

TRADE PAYABLES

Micro, Smalf and Medium Enterprises
Cthers

For Related party transaction Refer Note No. 39

Toftal

Total

Total

Total

Total

The Gomgany has amounts due fo suppliers under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008
(MSMED Act) as at the year end. The disclosure pursuant te the sald Act Is as under:

Principal amount due fo suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006

interast accrued and due to suppllers under MSMED Act, 2006 on the above amount

Paymenl made to suppliers {other than interest) beyond the appointed day, during the year
Interest paid/adjusted to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2008 (other than section 16)

Interest paid/adjusled to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2008 (Seclion 16)

Interes! due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2003 for payrmenls already made

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006

The information regarding Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parfies have
been identified on the basis of informalion available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the Audilors.

OTHER CURRENT Financial LIABILITIES

Credilors for Expense
Provision for Employee Benefits Payable

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance Received From Customers

Statutory Dues
Gther payabie

SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Gratuity s T

Total

Total

As at 31/3/2020

As at 31/3/201¢

(Rs. In takhs} (Rs. In lakhs}
38.37 37.15
38.37 37,15
43.64 32.26
43.64 32.26
13,03 18.72

0.04 0.04
13.07 19.76
(9.20}

(9.20% -

.87 19.76

72.63

400.00 230.00

. .400.0.0. 309,63

264487 708.69

1,018.57 1,251.95

1,273.24 1,960.64
2018-2020 2018-2018

{Rs, In lakhs} (Rs. In Iakhs}

254.67 T708.6%

0.29 0.00
2,084.44 5,623.91
0.00 0.00
0.0 -0.00
0.29 0.00
0.29 .00
70.82 103.00
228.31 192.74
300.23 206.74

39.48 16.60

21.36 25.89

42.80 108.73
103,72 152.22

0.70 Q.59

0.70 4,58
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REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sales
Less Excise Duty

" Net Bales .

- Sales of Services

Technicat Service lncome
Other Operating revenue

Miscellaneous Income
Other Operating revenus

OTHER INCOME
Dividend from Subsidiary Comgpany

Dividend from Mufual Funds

Prefil from Sale of Mutual Funds

Interest from Bank deposits al amoriised cosl
Inlerest from Loans at amertised cest
Foreign Exchange Fluctuafion Gain
Miscellaneous Income

Fair valug of Investments

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Particulars of Raw Materials Consumed
Raw Materals Consumed

Packing Malerial

PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
Purchases of Slock-in-trade

Break-up of Raw Material Consumed

Impaorted
Indigenous

CHANGES IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED GO0ODS, AND TRADED GOODS

Finished products/ Stock In Trade (At Ciose)

Finished products/ Slock in Trade (At commencement)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Director Remuneration

Sataries & Wages

Gratuity

Contributicn to Provident & other funds
Staif Welfare Expenses

FINANCE COST
Interest Expense

- Banks
Bank Guarantee fees & charges

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

Depreciation and Amoriisation Expenses

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Tetal

Total

As al 31/3/2020

As at 317372019

{Rs. In lakhs} (Rs. In lakhs)

10,885.81 14,268.50
10,685.81 11,255.50
1,685.52 1,844.10
51.86 65.82
51.86 65,82

12,423.19 13,165.41
48.00 0.00
0,00 7.81

43.00 7.81

1.14

85.76 67.45
0.59 1.34

16.89 0.00
13.97 5.84
C.18 0.14

. 166.62 82,68
£,305.50 6,570.22
443,70 261.83
5,749.20 6,822.05
348,12 358.27
6,097.32 7,180.32
700,89 336.13
£,366.42 G,644.18

- 6,087.32 ,7,180.32
152.22 218,81
218.8% 103.33
66,59 {115.47)1
92.23 42.07
2,254.58 1.881.47
34.56 28.48
154.06 136.20
- 66.58 57.83
2,604.03 2,146,158
46,34 10.28
33.25 35.31

' 82.60 45.58
87.14 79.37
B7.14 70.37
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OTHER EXPENSES

MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Freight inwards

-Labour Charges

" ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
_ Direclor's Siiting Fees

Rates & Taxes

Eleciricily charges

Printing and stationary

Talephone & Postage Expenses
insurance

Computer Expense

Auditors Remuneration

Legat, Professional & consultancy fees
Repairs & Maintenance Others
Miscellaneous expenses

CSR Expendilure

Business Suppaort Services

Lab Tesling Expenses

Technical Service Expense

Sleres Consumed

Forgign Exchange Fluctuation Loss
Provision for Doubtiul Debts

Bad Debls Written Of

SEELING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Carriage outwards

Rent

Commission on sales

Travelling Expenses

Royalty Expenses

Sales Promotion Expenses

Auditor's Remuneration consists of:

Staluiory Audil Fees

Tax Audit Fees

Taxation and Other Mallers
Qut of Pocket Expenses

Lease
The Company normally acquires offices, warehouses and vehicles under non-canceliacle operational leases.
Minimum laase payments outstanding at year end In respecl of these asets are as under:

Due within one year

Due laler than ane year and not fater than five years

Due later than five years

Leasa payments recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net Profil available to Equity Sharehelders (Rs. In Lakhs)

Total number of Equity Shares {Face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)
Weighted No. of Equity Shares

Basic Eamings per Share (in Rupees)

Diluted No, of Equity Shares

Difuied Eamings per Share (in Rupees)

SEGMENT REPORTING

"The Company is engaged in the manufaciure of Specialty Chemicais, which in the context of IND AS 108- Cperaling
segment specifed under section

133 of the Companies Act, 2013 is considered as a single business segmenl of the company.

Contingent Liabilites rot provided for are in respect of :

Particulars

a.lncome Tax matter
{i} The demand raised by CPC, Bangalore for the AY 2018-19 amounting to Rs. 7.33 Lakhs
(i The demand raised by Deputy Commissicner of Income Tax, Mumbai for the AY 2009-10 amounting io Rs. 3.05 Lekhs
{iii) The demand raised by Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax, Mumbai for the AY 2010-11 amounting to Rs. 330
{iv) The demand raised by Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax, Mumbai for the AY 201112 amaounting to Re, 1
{v) The demand raised by Assistant Commisioner of income Tax, Cantralised Processing Cell - TOS for varicus
years amounting to Rs. 1.39 Lakhs

b, Outstanding L.C & Bank Guarantees issued by Bankers.

c. Sales Tax matter .
1} As per Vat audit report of Ranipel plant sales tax fiability for A 2017-18 amounling lo Rs 1.82 Lakhs {Previous Year Rs. NiL)
{fiy As per Vdl audit report of Ranipet plant sales tax liability for AY 2017-18 amounting fo Rs 0.40 Lakhs {Previous Year Rs. NiL)
(i} The demand raised by Assisstant Commissioner of Sales Tax, Mumbai for varicus years amaunting

to Rs. MIL {Previous Year Rs. 7.17 Lakhs)
{iv) The demand raised by Assisstant Commissioner of Sales Tax, Mumbai for the AY 2013-14 amounting

1o Rs. NiL {Previous Year Rs. 8.54 Lakhs}
{v) The demand raised by Assisstant Commissioner of Commercial Tax, Vadodara for the AY 2011-12

amounting to Rs. NIL [Previous Year Rs. 6,61 Lakhs} for non receipl of C-Forms.

[+
(A+B+C)

Total

Total

As at 31/3/2020

As at 31132018

{Rs. In fakns) {Rs. It {akhs)
8.00 1.5
426.28 348.61
434.28 350.02
0,75 0.00
2018 2664
.95 3.46
13.85 12.44
3223 3519
1460 12.49
18.92 17.19
4.44 5.84]
65.20 8585
21.87 0.00]
8.19 10.38
23.25 23.00
200.00 100.00
19.10] 26.75
103.06 216.06
338.43 324.11
.00 1.64
35.88 .00
65,02 132.58
985,72 1,433.63
. 39533 460.84
113,84 79721
92,83 115.56
357.53 337.81
4:00 8.36
238.83 315.21
1,198.17 1,318.51
2.619:17 2,702.16
2018-2020 2018-2019 -
{Rs. In.fakhs) {Rs. In lakhs)
3.49 3.13
.46 0.44
0.34 212
0.15 Q.15
4.44 . 5.84

Total Miriimum Lease
Paymant Outstanding

Total Minimum Lease
Paymant Outstanding

as on 31/03/2020 as on 31/037201%
{Rs: in:lakhs) {Rs, Iy lakbs)
18.48 £3.94
0.90 186.64
113.94 79.72
2019-2020 20182016
777,18 856.90
500,000 5,00,000
500,000 5,00,000
155.44 174,18
5,00,000 5,00,000
155.44 171.18
As at 31/03/2020 As at 317031264
(R=. In Iakhs} {Rs. In lakhs}
11.77 4.45
1,778.68 1,426.86
2.22 2232




36 Tax Reconciliation
{a) The income tax expense cansisis of the followings:

Particulars 2019-20 201818
Cument Income Tax, 27167 350,62
Deferred Tax Expense {15.88) 12.36
Tax expense for the year - 255,78 362.95

{h) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit mulliplied by India’s tax Rate

Particulars 2019-20 201819
Prefit before income lax expense 1,032.97 1,Z18.89
indfan stabory Income fax rale 0.26 0.29
Expecied Income Tax éxpenses 264.70 354.84
PartA

Tax efiecl of amaunls which are not deducltible (allawable) in calculating taxable income:

Income exempt from income laxes (10,587} {2.27)
Addilional aliowances/deduclion 16.35 0.97
Transition gain - -
Olhers 1.28 {1.08)
Shorl/Excess Provision for earler years - -
Currenl Tax (A} 271.67 350.62
PartB
Deferred Tax Effecl al tha rals of:

Deprecialion (5.69) 12.34

Provision for Boubiful Debls (9.20)

investments al Fair Value 9.00 0.02

{15.88) 12.36

Less: -

Cratuity -

MAT Credit -

Other Deferred lax Assel . -

Provision for Doubtiul Debis -
Defarred Tax {B) (15.88)| - 12.36
Tax Expense (A+B) 255.78 362.99

37 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
A, Accounding classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including fheir fevels in he faly value hierarchy. It does nel include

fair value informabion for financial assets and financial liabiifies nol measured at fair value If the carrying amounlis a 1 hie approximation of fair value.
3 As at 31 March 2020 .
Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value | Fair value | Amotised Tatal Level Levej 2 Level 3 Total
through through * Cest

prefit and other ! -
loss. comprehen
sive income

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalenls 779.26 779.26 -
{including other bank balances}

Invesiments

- Mutual Funds 50.91 58,91 59.91 59.91
- Equity Shares (Unquoled) £98.44 668,44 -
Frade and other receivables 3,696.67 3,696.67 -
Loans 3.65 365 -
Clher financial sssels 7B2.E% 78269 -
TOTAL - 59.91 - 5,340.7¢ 5,000.61 58.91 - - 59.91
Finaneial lfabilities

Long ierm bomewings 438.37 438.37 . -

{Inctudiing current malurty of
Long lerm borrowinas)

Trade and ofher payables 1,273.24 1,273.24 -
Other financial llabilities 300.23 300.23 -
TOTAL - - 2.011.84 2,011.84 - - - -
As at 31 March 2019
Carrying amount Fair value
Fairvalue{ Fairvalue | Amotised Total Level 1 Level 2 tavel2 Total
threugh through Cost

profit and ather
loss comprehen
sive inrome

Financial assets -

Cash and cash eguivalents 132.33 13233 : -

{Inciuding other bank halances)

Invesiments

- Mutual Funds 13.81 1264 1361 13.61
- Equity Shares {Unguoted} 635.75 B35.75 -

Trade and other receivables 4367 .44 4,367 44 -

Loans 35 3.51 -

Other financiat asseis 115471 1.154.71 -

TOTAL 13.61 - 6,203.74 §,307.35 13.61 - - 13.69
Finansiai liabikifies

Leng ferm bomowings 346.78 346.78 ' -

(Including current maturity of

Lona term bomowings)

Trade and olher payables 1,960.54 1,860.64 -
Olher financial fiabiiilles 295.74 295.74 -

TOTAL - - 2,603,16 2,603.16 - - - -

Levet 4 inpuls arg quoled prices {unadjusted) in aclive markets lor identical assets or fiabililies lhat the entity can access at the measurement dale.
Level 2 inpuls are inpuls, olher than quoled prices included wilhin Level 1, hat are observable for the assel or kability, eilker direcily or Indirectly. N

Level 3 inputs are unabservable inpuls for the asset or Kabifity.



C. Financial risk management
The Company's activities expose il to Credil fisk, liquidity risk and markel risk.

i. Risk management framework

Risk Managemenl is an Tnlegral part of the Cormpany's plans and operalians. The Cempany's board of directors has overall cesponsibility for ihe establishment and oversighl
of the Company risk management framework, The boeard of direclors is responsible for developing and moniloring the Company risk management poficies.

Tie audil committes oversees how management monitors eompliance with the Company's risk managemeat policies and pracedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in rafation lo the risks faced by the Company. The audit committes is assisled in ils oversight rofe by fnternal audil. intemal audit undertakes both
regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management conlrols and procedures, the results of which are reporied lo the audit commillee.

ii. Gredit risk
Gredil risk is the risk of finandfal loss to the Company if a customer or counierparty to a financial instrument fails Lo meet ils conlraclual obligations, and arfses principally
from Ihe Company's receivables from customers and investments in debl securities, cash and cash equivalents, mutuat funds, bonds etc.

The carrying amount of financial assels represenis lhe maximum credit exposure.

Trade and other receivables

Credit risk is he risk of possible default by the counter party resulling in a financial loss.

The Company managas cradit risk \nrough various internal policies and procedures selforth for effeclve conlrol over credi exposure. These are managed by way of sefling
various credil approvals evaluation of fnancial condilion before supply terms, setting credit limits, indusiry lrends,ageing analysis and continuously monilodng the
creditworthiness of cuslomers to which the Company grants credil lerms in the nommal coursa of business.

Based on prior experience and an assessment of the curreni economic environment, management balieves Lhal sufficient provision is mad for credil risk wherever credit is
exlended o custormers.

Cash and cash equivalents .
Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Cempany's freasury depariment in accordance with (he Company's palicy, Invesimen of surplus funds are made in
mainty in mutual funds wilh goad relums and wilh high credit raiings assigned by International and domestic credil ralings agencies.

Other than Irade and other receivables, lhe Company has no other financial assels that are past due but not impaired.

i, Liquidity risk

Ligquidity risk it the risk that the Company will not be abie lo meet its financial abfigations as they become due. The Ccmr.'vany manages iis fiquidity risk by ensuring, as far as
possible, that it will always have sulficient fiquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and slressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable fesses or risk to
fhe Company’s feputalion.

iv. Market risk .

Market risk is (he risk of loss of fulure eamings, fair values or fulure cash flows Lhal may result from adverse changes in markel rales and prices (such as Tnleresl rates,
foreign cummency exchange rates ). Markel risk is atiributable to all market risk-sensitive fnancial instruments, ail foreign currency recelvables apd payables and all shorl lerm
and long-lemn debt. The Company is exposed to markel risk primarily relaled (o foreign exchange rate risk, interesi rate risk and ihe market value of s invesiments. Thus,
the Company's exposure lo market risk is a funcfion of invesiing and borrowing aclivilies and revenue generaling and operating acllvilies in foreign cumences.

a) Gurréncy risi

The Campnay is exposed lo cumency risk Lo the extenl Ihat thare is & mismatch between the currencies in which sales, purchase, and olher expenses are denominated and
the functional currency of the Company. The funclional currency of the Company is indian Rupees {INR). The currencies in which Ihese transacions are primarily
derominated are EURQ and USD,

b} Interest rate risk

intersst rate risk 1s the 7isk Inat [he fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In markel interest rales. Investiment commilles
manages and constanly reviews the interest rale movements in the market. This risk s mitigated by the Gampany by investing the funds in varioustenors depending on the
fiquidity needs of Ine Company. The Campany's exposures o interesl rale risk (s not significant.

38 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
{A) Definad contribution plan
Centribulions are made le Employee Provideni Fund (RPF), Employees State Insurance Scheme (ESIC) and other Funds which covers all regular
employees. Both the employaes and the Company make predetermined contributions to the Providenl Fund and ESIC. The conlribulions are normaliy
based on a cerfain percenlage of the employee’s salary. Amount recognised as expense in respect of these defined contribulion plans, aggragate to Rs.
159.11 Lakh {Previous year Rs 140.05 Lakh).

Year ended Year ended
March 34, 2020 March 31, 2019
Conlribution to Provident Fund 134.31 T4
Conlributlon o Superannualion Fund 5.05 385
Coniribution to ESIC 19.54( - 2408
Coniribulion lo Labour Walfare Fund 0.21 0.19]
159.41 140.05

{B} Defired Benefit Plan
The Company's obligation lowards the Graluity Fund s a Defined Benefit Pian. Based on be acluarial valualion oblained in (his respect, details of Acturiaf
Valuzfien are as follows:

As at 31 March | Asat 31 March
2020 2019
{Funded plan}

() cChange in Definad Benefit Obligation

Opening defined banefit obligalion 220,16 162.82
Amoaunt recognised in profil and lass

Cuirent service cost 3z.02 2522
Inlerest cost 17.06 i4.17

Amaunt recognised in other comprehensive income
Acluarial loss / {gain) arising from:
Refum on Plan Assels

Financial assurnptions 61.80 727
Other .

Benefils paid (10.33} (931}
Closing defined benefil obligation 320,81 220.16

{ii} Change in Fair Yalue of Assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 187.31 140,68

Amoun! recognised in profit and loss N
Intarest income 14.52 10.9¢

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Acluadal gain{ (loss} . -
Return on Plan Assels, Excluding interest Income 1.58 2.55




Exquitable Fund Transfer in 4483
Conlributions by employer 38.55 42,48
Benefils paid (19.33) {9.31}
Clesing fair value of plan assels 276,47 187.31
Aclual return on Plan Assels 16.10 1345
" ..|(i) Plan assets camprise the following
Unqouted Unqeuted
insurance fund (100%;} 278.47 187.31
{iv} Principal actyarial assumptions used LA A
Discount rate B.75 7.75
Whihdraval Rals 1.00 1.00
Future Salary Increase 5,00 5.00]
As at 31s{ March, |As al 31st
v} Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 2020 March, 2019
Present value of ebligations as at year end 320.81 220.16
Falr vaiue of plan assels as at year end (276.47) {187 31}
et {asset} / liability recognised as al year end 44,34 32,85
Recagnised under ;
Shorl lerm provisions 0.70 0.59
Long lerm provisiens 43.64 32.28
44.34 312.89
{vi} Sensitivity analysis
Reasonzbly possible changes at ihe reporting dale 1o ane of the relevant acluaral assumplions, halding olher
As at 3ist March, 202¢ As at 31st March, 2019
increase Deorease increase Decrease
iscount rate (1% movement) - Gratuily {33.62) 3J9.58 {23.56} 27.79
Future salary growih (1% movement) - Gratuity 39.68 (34.44) 28,18 (24,34)
The abaeve sensilivity enalyses have been cafculaled to show the movemenl in defined benefit abligalion in isclalion

{vii)_E d future cash flows

The expected maturity anafysis is as follows ;

For year ended
31.3.2020

For year ended
31.3.2019

Expected benefits for year 1
Expected benefits for year 2
Expected bensfils' for year 3
’ Expected benefils for year 4
Expecled benefils for year 5

Expecled benefits for year & and above

346

17.29

§.88|
16.08

27.73)

21.73

30.91 28.36
43,05 268.02
i251,98 1044.44

39 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company's capilal managernent objactives are:
~ o ansure the Company's ability to conlinue as a going concern; and
- fo provide an adequate return o shareholders {hrough eplimisation of debls and equity batance.

The Company moniiors capital on lhe basis of the camying amount of debt less cash and cash equivalents as presenled on lhe face of the financia

(i) Debt equity rajio

payment of Fnal dividend of Nit per share of face value of Rs.10 each for the
vear ended March 31, 2020 {March 31, 2019: Rs. 28 per share),

This proposed dividend is subject fo Lhe approval of shareholders in the ensuing
annual general meeling and hence not recognised as liability,

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
| Bt (includes non-curment, current borrowings and current maturities of long lerm debl) 438,37 345.78
Less : cash and cash equivalenis 69.26 53.53
Net debt 369.12 283.25
Total equlty 5155,56 4814,14
Net debt 1o total equity ralic . 7.16% 6.08%
(i} Dividend an equity shares paid during the year
For the year For the year
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2013
Dividend on equity shares
Final dividend for the year endad March 31, 2020 of Rs. 28 140.00 240,95
{previous year for year ended March 31, 2018: Rs, 48.18) per fully paid share )
Dividend distribution {ax on above 28.78 49.53
Intenim dividend paid during the year ended March 31, 2020 of Rs. 44 220,001 -
{during previous year ended March 31, 2018: Rs. 46.19) per fully pald share
Dividend distribution 12x on above 4522 -
Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
“The Board of Direclors al i's meeling held on May 28lh, 2020 have recommended - 240.95

40 GORPCORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per seclion 135 of the Companies Acl 2013, a CSR cormmittee has been formed by the Company. identification
of deserving areas for the Company's CSR activities has been done during the year. With water being the
business of the company, The Management has dentified village for cammying out CSR activities The funds were
uliised through the year on these aclivilies which were specified in Schedule Vil of the Compenies Act, 2013,

- Gross amaunt required o be spent by the company during the year Rs. 23.23 lakhs.

- Amount spent during the year is Rs. 23.25 lakhs

Expendiiure related o Corperate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of the Companies Acl, 2013 read with
Schedule Vil thereof: Rs. 23.25 Lakhs {Previous Year Rs. 23,00 Lakhs).




41 RELATED PARTY QISCLOSURES
Retaled party disclosures as required under Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosuies™ issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of
tndia ate given belowe
a) Relgiicnship:
T. Holding Company ;
Chernbend Chemicals Limited

. Bubsidiary Company

Chembeond Water Technologies Lid Malaysia (Formerly know as Chembond Chemicals (Mataysia) SDIN.BHD)
Hi._Associate & Fellow Subsidiary Companies; - . e e - e . R
Chemband Clean Waler Technologies Lid., Chembond Material Technologles Pul Lid {formerly Protochem industres Pyl Lid.). Chembond Clean Water Technologies Lid.
Chembond Biosciences Lid. (farmerly Chemband Industrial Coatings Lid).Chembond Polymers & Materials LI, Chembond Cabvatis Indushial Hyglens Systerns Ltd. Phiroze
Selhina Put Lid,, Chembond Distibutlon Lid. and Gramos Chemtical (india) Pvt. Lid.

iv. Key Management Personne! and thelir relatives (KMP)

Key Management Persannel.

Sameer V. 8hah, Nirmal V. Shah, Vined Deshpande, Mahendra K.Ghelani
_ Relatives ;

Padme V. Shah, Dr. Shilpa §. Shah, Mam!a N. Shah, Alpana 5. Shah, Jyotl N. bMehia, Gauri N.Mehia, Karishma N.Mehta
Enlilies ovar which Key Management personnet are abie to axerclse influgnce ;

CCL Oplo ronies Pt L4d,, Finor Piplaf Chernicats Lid., & and N Venlures LId. GTK Intermediates Pwt. Lid. Visan Holdings Pvl. Lid,, and Crianc Clean Energy Puiltd,
B) The lollowing transaclions were carded cut wilh related parfies in the ardinary course of business
{Z.In Jakhs}
For e year ended fas on 31.03.2620 31.03.2019
Assoctate / Assaciate
Helding Feliow Holding Fellow

Descripéion of the nature of i Company _ |Subsidiary |Subsidiary ;KMP Total Company __ |Subsidiary _{Subsidiary  [KMP Total
Sales of Goods 43.46 31.09 403.46 32.54 516.64 43.08 0,00 455,90 20,26 48516
Chemband Chemical Lid 43.45 0.00] 0.00 0.00 43.46 43.08 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Chembond Materal Technolegles Pyt Lid .00 0.3 0.0¢ 0.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Chamband Clean Waler Technologles Lid 0.00 402.43 0.00] 402 43 0.00 420.84 0.00 429.84 -
Chemband Distibution Lid 2.00] BE7 0,00 0.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 £.00 !
Finor Piplaj Chermicals Lid. 0,00 2.00 32.64] 32.64 0.ge 0.00 29.26 29.26
Chembond Water Techrologles Ud Malaysia (Formesly|
know as Chembond Chemicals {Malaysia) SDN.BHO) 31.09 0.00 0.00 31.08 0.00] 26.06 Q.00 - 2506
Purchase of Goods 410.76 0.00 J0E,26 856.25. 1567537 4124.82 0.00 3744 428.88 466,22
Chembond Chamical Ltd 410.76 0.00 0.00 0,00 41076 4124.82 Q.00 0.00] 0.00 0.00
Chembond Clean Water Technologles Lid 9.00 205.82 .00 205.83 0.00 0.00 0.00! 0.00
Chembond Distributien Lid D.oc 82.24 0.00 8224 0,00 37,44 0,00 37.44
Finos Piplaj Chemicals Ltd. 2.00 0.00 858.25 8558.25 0.00] 428.88. 428.88
Chembond Material Technolegies Pvi bid 0.80 18.05 0.00 18.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50
Chembond Calvatis Industrial Hyalene Systems tid 0.00 222 .00 2.22] 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00i
Purchase of Fixed Asseis 0.37 0.00 0.00 £.00 0.27 186,79 0,00 252,05 9,00 252,05,
Chembond Clean Water Tachnelogles Ltd i 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 252.05 0.00 252.05
Chembond Chemical Lid 0.37 0.001 0.00 0.00! 0.37 19678 .00 0.00 .00 0.00 -
Sale of Fixed Assets o.0o0 0.0¢ a.60 . 0.00: 000! 121.98 6.00 .00 0.00 .00
Chembond Chemical Lid 0.00 0.00: 0.00 0.00: 121.98 0.00 .00 0,00 0.00|
Reimbursement of Expanses 345.74, 0.00] 2672 1238 384.22 302.70 0.00 0.00 3.00 3.00
Chembond Chemical Lig 345.74/ 0.00. 0.00 345.74 302.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00!
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Lid 25.72 23.72 9.00;
Finor Piplaj Chemicals Lid, 0.00 12.18 12.78 0,00 0,00 3.00 3.00
Dividend Paid 380.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 360.00/ 240,85 040 0.60 a0 0.00
Chembend Chemical Lid 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 380.00 240.85| 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Johwork charges 894,83 ¢.00 0.00 0,02 #90.33 £19,04 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00]
Chembond Chemical Lid 890.83 0.00] 0.00| £.00 890.83 £19.04 0.00 0.00 0.00] 0.00]
Leoan Received .00 4.00] 165,00 5.00 170.00 0,00 0.00i 140.00| 20.0¢: 230.00
Finar Pipla] Chemicals Lid. 0.00i 0.001 5.00 5.00 0.00 0.00 £.90 50.00 90.00/
Chembond Clean Water Technologfes Lid 0,00} 165.001 0.08 165.00 0,00 0.00 146.00: 0.00 140.00|
Catporate Guranter Fees 18.43 0,00 0.00 .00 18.43 17.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Chembond Chemical Ltd 18.43 0.00 0.00 .00 18.43 17.00 0.00 0.00 0.09 0.00
Dividend Income 0 ] 48.00 [ 48.00 1] 0 0 0.00
Chembond Clean Water Tachnologies Lid 0.00 48.00 .60 48.00 0.00] 0,00 0.00: 0.00|
Rantal Expenses 5§0.94 0.00 0,00 3.001 53.94! 27.72 D.00 £.00 2.00 3.00]
Chembond Chemical Ltd 50.54 0,00 0.08 .00 50,94 27.72 0.00. .00 .00 2.00]
Finos Piplaj Chemicals Lid 0.00 0.08 3.00 3.00 0.00 0.c0 3.00 2.00
Director Remunration 0 0 0 94.89 §4.89 0 a a 44.53 44.55
Niemal V, Shah 0.00] .00 49,36 48.36 0.00 0.00 44.55 44.55
Vinod J. Deshpande 45.63 45.53
Director Sitting Fees 0 ol 0 075 6.75] G 0 0 1] 0.00
iMahendra Ghelant 0.00 0.co0 078 0.75 0.00| 0.90| 0.00| 0.001
Ravalty . 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08} - 0.00 0.00| 9.38 9.36
S and N Ventures Lid . 6.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00! 0.90! 9.36]- 9.36]

. 9.99:
Eafance at the and of the year - 9.00
A, Sundry Behtors 9.24 0.00 5.60 252,80 27065 1.82 0.00 94.72 5.64 100,36
Chembond Chemical Lid 9.24 .00 0,00 0.00 9.24 1.52 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00
Chembond Clean Water Technologles Lid 0.00 7.55 0,00 7.58 0.00 24.72 0.00 94,72
Lhembond Disirhution Lid 0.00 0.78 0.00 0.9 0,00 0,00 .00 0,00
Chambond Matedal Technologies Pvt Lid . .00 0.26: 0.00 0.26 0.00 0.00 2.00 0.08
Finar Piplaj Chemicals tld 0.00] 252.80 252,80 .00 0.00i .64 5.64
B. Sundry Creditors 116.60 .00 11,72 .43 133.74 545.79 2.00 136.05 170.08 306.13
Chembond Materal Technologies Pvt Ltd .00 .00 11.65 £.00 11.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00
Frnot Pipla] Chenvleals Lid .00 2.00 3.43 343 0.co 170.08 170.08
Chembond Distribution Lid 0.00 12.56 12.56
Cheimbond Claan Water Technologies | td 0.50 12349 123,49
Chembond Calvatis Industial Hygiene Systems Ltd £.00 0.00 0,08 0.00: 0.08 0.00 0.00 .40 0.00
Chembond Chemical Lid 118,60 0.00 .00 0.00 118.60 548.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
G, Investments 0.00 §2.58 63575 0.00 698.44 0.00 @.80 .00 9.00 0.00]
Chembond Claan Waler Technologles Lid 0.00 §15.75 0.00 635.75 0.00¢ 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00
Chembond Water Technologies Lid Malaysia (Fermerly
knew as Chembond Chemicals (iMalaysia) SDN.BHD) 62.68 Q.00 G268 0.00 0,00 000 - 0,00
D. Borrowings 0.00 0.00] 305.00 95.80 95.00 0.00 0.00 140.00 90.00 230.09
Fine Piptal Chemicals Lid 85 95.00 90 40,00
Chembond Clean Waler Technologies Lid 305.00 30500 140 140.00
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The Government of India has inserted section 115BAA in the Income Tax Act, 1961 which provides domestic companies an option lo pay corporate tax at reduced rate of 22% plus

appiicable surcharge and cess which is effective from 1st April 2018 subject to certain conditions.

During the year the Company has adopted the option of reduced rate and accordingly income tax and deferred tax have been caiculated.

COVID-18 Assessment:

The COVID-19 pandernic is an evolving human tragedy declared a globaj pandernic by the World Heaith Qrganisation with adverse impact on economy and business giobally. Supply
Chain disruptions in India as a resuil of the outbreak started wih restrictions on movement of geods, closure of borders etc. in several states followed by a nationwide lockdown
announcet by the Indian Government, {e stem the spread of COVID-18, This has impacled normal business operations of the Company. Manufacturing, supply chain, cashflows elc. have
been disrupted. All plants of the Company were shul down on 23¢d March, 2020 only (o restarl at considerably fower productivity during the month of April & May 2020 in a phased
manner, We have implemented the necessary precaution measures lo ensure hygiene, safely and wetlbeing of all our employees at all planis and iocations. The Campany has
considered the possible effects COVID-19 may have on the recoverability and carrying value of ils assets comprising Property Plant and Equipment, Investments, Inventories and Trade
Receivables. Based on current indicators of future ecanomic condilions the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets and there Is no significant fmpact on its
financial statements as on 31st March, 2020, The situafion is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty arcund the extent and tirming of the potential fulure impact of the COVID-
19 which may be different from that estimated as at the dale of approval of lhesz financial statements. The Coempany wifl continue to ciosely monitor any matertal changes arising of

future economic conditions and impact on its business.

Previcus year figures have been regrouped, reallocaled and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current years classifcation and presentation.

As per our aftached reporl of even date

For Bathiya & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 1C1046W/W100063
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